
 

 
 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Wednesday, 9 March 2022 

Time: 

 

2.00 pm 

Venue: 

 

Hybrid Meeting -  Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek and via Microsoft 

Teams. 
1 March 2022 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for Absence.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8) 

4. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

5. Declaration of Interests:  

  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

6. Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee. (Pages 
9 - 18) 

7. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 

 

8. Work Programme. (Pages 19 - 20) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:- 
 

i) Chairman’s items; 
ii) Members items; 
 

9. NHS Approach to Climate Change - Chris Bird, Director of Partnerships, Strategy & 
Digital, North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust. (Presentation) (Pages 
21 - 28) 

 

 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

 

Membership of Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor B A Hughes (Chair) Councillor J T Jones (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor B Cawley 
Councillor E Fallows Councillor K Flunder 

Councillor I Herdman Councillor T Holmes 
Councillor A Hulme Councillor I Lawson 
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor T McNicol 

Councillor D Price Councillor J Redfern 
Councillor T Riley Councillor J Salt 

Councillor L Swindlehurst Councillor P Wood 
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING 
 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 9 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor B A Hughes (Chair)   

 
 Councillors C J S Atkins, B Cawley, E Fallows, K Flunder, 

I Herdman, T Holmes, A Hulme, J T Jones, L A Malyon, T Riley, 
L Swindlehurst and P Wood. 

 

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillors: 
M Bowen 

 

 K Hoptroff  

 I Plant  

 H Sheldon MBE  

 R Ward  

 

APOLOGIES: Councillors I Lawson, T McNicol and D Price. 
 

126 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 

 

Councillor Hoptroff was substitute member for Councillor Price. 

 
127 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN). 

 

There were none. 

 
128 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 

 

Agenda No. Member Declaring 

Interest 

Nature of Interest 

Agenda item 9 Cllr K. Hoptroff Other – Family member 
is a client of the 

Kniveden Project and 
John Hall Gardens. 

Agenda item not 

specified. 

Cllr P. Wood  

 
Other – Daughter is an 

NHS employee. 

 

Cllr T. Riley Other – Family member 
is an NHS employee. 

 
 
 

 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 February 2022 
 

2 
 

 
129 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 

 
DECIDED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel held on 15 September 2021 be APPROVED as a correct record 

and signed by the Chair. 
 

130 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING OF THE HEALTHY STAFFORDSHIRE 
SELECT COMMITTEE. 
 

The Panel noted the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 13 December 2021.   

 
Councillor Flunder explained that during this meeting, councillors received 
information around access to GP appointments, safeguarding of vulnerable people 

and the welfare of employees. A further update on General Practice Access would 
be included on the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee work 

programme in 6 months’ time. The Committee also considered Urgent and 
Emergency Care, Home Care, staff retention and capacity.  
 

During the meeting of the Health & Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
31st January 2022, it was agreed that representatives from Staffordshire Moorlands 

could meet to consider the interaction between the Leek, Biddulph and Cheadle 
areas in the development of the Integrated Care Hubs. Councillor Flunder would 
keep the Panel updated on this matter. 

 
Members also discussed Integrated Care Boards and required clarification on how 

patients would be represented.  
 

131 WORK PROGRAMME. 

 

Prior to the meeting, Councillor Cawley had requested that a piece of work on 

loneliness was included on the Work Programme. Although this topic was within the 
remit of the Community O&S Panel, he felt this should be reviewed by the Health 
Panel or as a joint piece of work with the Community Panel. 

 
Councillor Flunder explained that he was involved with a mental health project in 

schools.  
 
Members also requested that the Dementia Group be reconvened and for staff to 

receive the appropriate training. Councillor Swindlehurst had offered to cascade this 
training prior to the pandemic. 

 
In relation to the performance of the West Midlands Ambulance Service (WMAS) in 
the Moorlands, Councillor Jones informed the Panel that he had approached a 

retired WMAS employee to interpret the data received via a Freedom of Information 
Request. Councillor Jones invited members to a briefing session at which the retired 

officer would present his analysis of this data.  
 
Councillor Malyon also invited all councillors to a meeting she had arranged at 

Ipstones Parish Council at which a senior officer from the WMAS would be 
attendance.  

 
Page 4



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 February 2022 
 

3 
 

Members were concerned about the length of time patients had waited for 
ambulances to arrive and gave accounts of recent examples of instances that had 

occurred in their wards.    
 
DECIDED: 

 
That the Work Programmed be agreed, subject to, the following items being added:- 

 
1) Loneliness; 
2) Dementia Care. 

 
132 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 

 
Q1. Question received from Councillor Cawley: 

 

“I was wondering if we have any information about the position regarding Health 
Visitors in the Staffs Moorlands since 2019? I understand that health visitors have 

had to prioritise their work in the period of lockdown and beyond. I was particularly 
interested to read over the last few years Health Visitors numbers have fallen in the 
UK by about a third. If this is replicated in the Moorlands I wondered about the 

implications for looked after children and vulnerable young people with reduced 
numbers of health visitors?” 

 
Response from Councillor Bowen: 

As the query refers to an aspect that does not directly relate to the work of the 

District Council, it would be difficult for me to respond to.  However, we have asked 
the responsible body for comment on this matter but have yet to receive a reply. 

 
By way of supplementary questions, Cllr Cawley queried the remit of questions being 
asked of Portfolio Holders as detailed replies had been provided in the past. He 

disagreed that questions which related to the Health Service were not the 
responsibility of the District Council, however he understood that we had to retrieve 

the information from outside organisations. 
 
Councillor Bowen agreed with Councillor Cawley’s sentiments in relation to Health 

Visitors. He had contacted a Health Visitor himself, referred to a Call to Action 
scheme, a Contact Hub and reduced funding and services.  

 
Q2. Question received from Councillor Atkins: 

“When will the opening hours of the Minor Injuries Unit at Leek Moorlands Hospital 

return to their normal hours? Why are patients arriving before 5pm still being turned 
away by the walk in centre reception, without any medical assessment, despite 

assurances to the contrary?” 
 
Response from Councillor Bowen: 

Thank you for raising this important query which has been sent to the Midlands 
Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. Once I have received a response from the 

organisation, I will ensure it is sent to all members of this Panel. 
 
Councillor Atkins expressed her concerns around the level of service offered by the 

Leek MIU. Despite previously being given assurance that patients would not be 
turned away, she had been contacted by two patients that had arrived at the Walk-in 

Centre at 16:40 with injuries. Apparently, they were not medically assessed and 
asked to go to the Haywood Hospital.  Page 5



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 February 2022 
 

4 
 

 
Issues around staff shortages, retention of staff and funding were appreciated by the 

councillor. A request was made for the Walk-in service to resume its opening times 
between the hours of 8am-8pm. 
 

Councillor Bowen agreed with his colleague’s concerns. 
 

Kurt Moxley - Head of Transformation, MPFT, advised that this case was being 
investigated as a complaint by the Trust and apologised for the level of service 
received by the patients. He gave assurance that he would follow this up within his 

organisation and report back to the Panel. 
 

133 KNIVEDEN & JOHN HALL GARDENS (VERBAL UPDATE). (2:15PM) 
 

Josey Povey - Associate Director,  North Staffordshire Community Mental Health 

Services; Kenny Liang - Executive Director of Nursing & Quality, North Staffordshire 
Combined Health Care NHS Trust and Gail Edwards - Strategic Delivery Manager, 

Staffordshire County Council, were in attendance at the meeting following a request 
made by the Panel. 
 

From the County Council’s perspective, a mental health recovery service had been 
recommissioned at John Hall Gardens which would be delivered countywide by the 

MPFT from April 2022. This replaced the previous jointly commissioned service 
delivered by Rethink.  
 

In terms of the service offer, it would be based around individuals, their recovery and 
return to independence. Around eligibility, the services would be for with people 

mental health issues or had a social care need. An assessment would have been 
carried out and a social worker involved. 
 

The new service would be for a 2 year period and in 2023, the County Council would 
look to possibly recommission the service on joint basis. 

 
The Kniveden Site was currently owned by the County Council, which hadn’t 
delivered services here for a while and the only services available were provided by 

North Staffordshire Combined Health Care NHS Trust. It was the intention for the 
site to be marketed for sale in April 2022 and support had been offered in terms of 

relocation of services delivered by the provider to ensure continuity for service users.  
 
Members sought clarity around the types of appropriate services which would be 

available to both new and existing clients. Kenny Liang - Executive Director of 
Nursing & Quality, responded and gave assurance that the Trust was committed to 

collectively provide mental health services from alternative sites in the area. Access 
to services would improve as there had been significant investment in mental health 
services within the NHS. Community and voluntary sector partnerships would be 

expanded within the Moorlands.   
 

The activities provided at Leek Town Football Club were queried, to which the 
Officers explained, this included access to sports, gardening and grounds 
maintenance. Existing clients of Kniveden had suggested these activities and would 

be supported in their transition by a member of staff from Kniveden.   
 

Page 6



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 February 2022 
 

5 
 

Although a number of social activities would still be available, some members felt 
that the new services were not comparable to the productive activities  which were 

provided in a safe environment at Kniveden. 
 
Discussion also took place around a successful mental health centre in East London, 

the importance of community based mental health support, referral rates and the 
perceived reduction in mental health services over the years.  

 
Around therapy being time limited, the 6 week sessions were welcomed but it was 
felt that this period of support was not enough of an incentive for clients to access 

the service.  
 

To conclude, mental health services would continue to be provided and due to 
investment, services would be expanded. The Trust recognised the concerns of the 
existing Kniveden clients and were doing as much as possible to ease anxieties 

during the transition period. 
 
DECIDED: That the update be noted. 

 
134 LEEK INTEGRATED CARE HUB (SERVICES AND COMMUNITY 

REPRESENTATION ON BOARDS). (2:45PM) 
 

Apologies were received from Adam McKeown - Operations Director – Planned 
Care/ Programme Director, MPFT.  
 

The Panel received a presentation delivered by Kurt Moxley – Head of 
Transformation at the MPFT, which covered the following subject areas:- 

 

 Long term condition projections in people aged 65 years and older in 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 

 Clinical Model 

 What is meant by Integrated Care 

 Access and clinical triage – approach 

 Key themes from informal engagement to date 

 Start of the Integrated Service Offer 

 Next Steps 

 
The Panel debated effectiveness of integrated care, the importance of shared 
information/communication systems and limited effect of models to map change. 

Members were informed that this agenda forced organisations to begin to share 
finance, buildings, teams and strategies. 

 
There were still a number of information systems within Staffordshire but 
advancements had been made towards integrated health records.  

 
A councillor commented that the ‘Hubs and Spokes’ – were an inner core of the 

Integrated Care Plan, rather than the next step to hospital and highlighted the 
importance of working with the community and voluntary sector when designing the 
hubs.  

 
With reference to communication, it was thought that this could be improved if the 

NHS could share information with community services. For example – following 
discharge from hospital, a voluntary group could provide meals/home visits etc. A Page 7



Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 9 February 2022 
 

6 
 

member of the Panel suggested that shared access to patient records should be 
mandatory between the organisations. 

 
Some members were sceptical that integrated care was feasible without integrated 
budgets and enquired about the positive changes that would be seen by patients 

from March this year. The Officer advised that initially patients would only be 
required to explain their condition once for the referrals to be made to the 

appropriate services. Long Term Condition Teams were planning to work together 
more effectively and work was being undertaken with voluntary services and social 
care. Round table discussions would be arranged to take place in March 2022. 

 
The Integrated Care White Paper had been published today which may be of interest 

to this Panel when consideration was given to its Work Programme. 
 
DECIDED: That the update be received. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 4.00 pm 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 8



 

- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Meeting held on 31 January 2022 

 
Present: Jeremy Pert (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 
 

Charlotte Atkins 
Philip Atkins, OBE 

Martyn Buttery 
Rosemary Claymore 

Richard Cox 
Ann Edgeller (Vice-

Chairman (Scrutiny) 
Keith Flunder 

 

Phil Hewitt 
Jill Hood 

Janet Johnson 
David Leytham 

Paul Northcott (Vice-
Chairman (Overview) 

Janice Silvester-Hall 
 

 

Also in attendance:  
Peter Axon, Interim Chief Executive Designate, Integrated Care System 

ICS Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent 
Lynn Millar – Director of Primary Care and Medicines Optimisation for 6 

Staffordshire and Stoke -on -Trent, Clinical Commissioning Groups. 
Paddy Hannigan,  

Tracey Shewan, Director of Communication and Corporate Services for 6 
Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent CCGs 
Marcus Warnes, Senior Responsible Officer, Combined Staffordshire CCGs 

Clare Neill, Associate Director of Communications & Strategic 
Partnerships, Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust  

Tanisha Steele, Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent CCGs 
Emily Doorbar,  

Richard Harling, Director Health and Care SCC  
Julia Jessel – Cabinet Member Health and Care, SCC 

 
Apologies: Barbara Hughes, Colin Wileman and Ian Wilkes 
 

Substitutes: Cllr Tony Holmes for Cllr Hughes and Cllr Julie Cooper for 
Cllr Wilkes  

 
PART ONE 

 
56. Declarations of Interest 

 
Councillor Ann Edgeller declared an interest as Partner Governor of the 
Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust (MPFT). 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

- 2 - 
 

57. Minutes of the last meeting held on 29 November 2021 and 
13 December 2021 

 

The minutes of the meetings held on 29 November 2021 and 13 

December 2021 be approved and signed as correct records. 

 

58. Integrated Care System Update 
 

The Interim Chief Executive Designate Integrated Care Board (ICB) 
provided a detailed report and presentation relating to the progress in the 

creation of the Integrated Care System (ICS), which included the 
development of the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) and the recent 

recruitments to the Integrated Care Board ICB.  

The CE ICB advised of the extended timeline for ICS which would now 
commence on the 1 July 2022. The three-month extended period from 

April to July would be used to develop the ICP and the governance 
structure that sits under the ICB. The ICP would oversee the development 

of the Health and Care Strategy for the ICS and holds the ICB to account 
for delivery of the strategy. The ICP strategy would be in place by March 

2023.  

Committee noted the significant challenges and opportunities to ICS at 

this time for both social care and health care.  

In response to Members questions the following responses and 
clarification was provided: 

 The ICS strategy and timelines would be developed by ICP. At a 
system level the number of meetings held had been reduced. Patient 

and public participation groups (PPI) would be linked into the system 
level strategy to ensure that the needs of local people were heard and 

understood, and that organisational change would have impact on 
client experience on the ground. There was more to do on developing 

the strategy over the coming months.  
 Assurance was given that the public voice and public need would be 

considered in all portfolios during the design and development work, 

in particular that place infrastructure variation considered local access 
need and would follow the customer journey as part of the strategy. 

 Members encouraged community group and voluntary sector 
involvement in consultation on the strategy. The voluntary sector was 

a key partner around the table and there was a need to gather 
intelligence and data to develop the strategy. 

 The ICP strategy was at a very early stage, work on timelines and 
process was progressing and an update would be brought back to a 
future meeting.  

 Delivery would be via three place-based partnerships (Place): North 
Staffs and Stoke-on -Trent; South East Staffs; South West Staffs and 

a System Provider Collaborative.  

Page 10



 

- 3 - 
 

 All Staffordshire County, District and Borough Council Chief Executives 
and the CE ICS had recently met and talked about Place and how local 

districts could influence and be involved in the Place discussion and 
the wider determinants of health agenda. It was understood that the 

uniqueness of each geographical area had to be considered, e.g., 
outflows to other areas and the acute services contacted outside the 

area and that there was a need to involve and be influenced by the 
District and Borough agendas. 

 Assurance was provided that the ICS would build on existing 
arrangements where they were in place and try to mitigate 
differences. The ICS CE indicated that when first appointed much of 

his time had been dedicated to the booster vaccination roll out, but 
focus was now on the next steps for ICS. It was understood that 

Covid-19 vaccination programme had impacted on the consultation 
and development of the ICS framework and that any concern relating 

to consultation and debating should be made known. 
 A Member indicated that Councils were different organisationally to 

NHS bodies, they were Member led with a medium-term strategy and 

different pay and conditions, he highlighted the need to communicate, 
be open and engage with members across the County.   

 It was explained that timelines were confined but that there was time 
to consult fully and prepare the legal framework to commence on 1 

July 2022. It was anticipated that design would continue to be 
developed taking on board all aspects of public and partner 

considerations before the strategy was finalised in March 2023.  
 
The Chairman indicated that Members would like to see the ICS strategy 

bring about tangible change for residents and an improved customer 
journey. The Committee had highlighted that the customer voice and 

geography of Place should be taken into account and that there was a 
need to involve the voluntary and community sector in shaping the 

strategy.   
 

The Chairman thanked the CE ICS for presenting the process and invited 
an update to a future meeting to provide more detail on the structure and 
progress.  

 
Resolved: 

1. That the update report be noted and a further update be requested 
on developing the ICS in July 2022. 

 
59. Phase 3 Covid Vaccination 3 Update 

 
The Director of Primary Care and Medicines Optimisation for 6 
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent, Clinical Commissioning Groups and the 

Chair of the Programme Board provided an update report and 
presentation relating to phase 3 of the Covid Vaccination Programme.  

Page 11



 

- 4 - 
 

 

The Committee noted the following comments and responses to 

questions: 

 There were currently no walk-in centres in the Staffordshire Moorlands 
district for resident’s use. It was explained that walk-in centres were 
targeted for low vaccine take up areas and that Leek and Biddulph 

areas in Staffordshire Moorlands district had high take up rates. There 
were community pharmacy appointments available to residents and 

these could be booked on the national booking system.  
 Members requested that changes to location of walk-in centres be 

widely communicated to residents.  
 The walk-in centre at the Pirehill Fire Station was situated on the A34 

road at Stone which was not easily accessed on foot. It was explained 
that the Fire Station site was identified to facilitate access for large 
numbers of residents by vehicle when it was first known that 150,000 

vaccines had to be delivered in two weeks. Members were invited to 
contact officers if they wanted to suggest more suitable alternatives 

for walk-in centres in Stafford Town Centre. 
 In terms of alternatives to a jab for younger vaccine recipients, such 

as a sugar cube, it was explained that injection for children was a tried 
and tested method to vaccinate.  The vaccine roll out for 11-15 year 

olds had a 60% uptake, and roll out for 5-11 year olds who were 
clinically vulnerable was due to commence. It was planned to offer the 
vaccine jab to all children 5-11 by the Easter Holidays. It was 

explained that there were technological reasons why vaccines were 
offered by injection and the method was approved by the Joint 

Committee on Vaccination and immunisation (JCVI). 
 In relation to low take up of vaccine, Members were advised that an 

inequalities group met weekly to consider how best to identify and  

target groups using data. Local councillors were also encouraged to 

identify groups in their wards and Members were encouraged to talk to 
their Local Outbreak Control Board Member. For rural areas an ‘ice 
cream van’ approach was used, where a mobile unit would be 

arranged and residents notified what time and date the unit would be 
on which site. These methods should be highlighted at a workshop for 

Members on 17th February 2022. 
 2.4 million booster vaccinations had been provided since 12 December 

2021. It was understood that the drive to vaccinate had been labour 
intensive, there was a need to train others to jab and be overseen by 

a clinician to make best use of people in the system, and there was a 
need to develop a sustainable model for vaccine roll out moving 

forward.  
 The need to re-circulate community pharmacy site information was 

highlighted to encourage take up of vaccinations. CCGs were working 

with social media groups to get factual information out to non-
vaccinated residents and encourage take-up and drop in Q&A sessions 

Page 12



 

- 5 - 
 

with trusted information had been arranged.  There was a steady rise 
in every cohort coming forward for vaccination. 

 Vaccination of NHS staff was proposed with the last date to have first 
vaccine by 4 February 2022. It was reported that of 45,000 members 

of NHS staff, 2% were unvaccinated, there being potentially 900 staff 
reduction. This was of concern to Members, they were advised that 

individual conversations with staff were ongoing and that a process 
was in place to reduce the impact.   

 
The Chair thanked presenters for the update and their continued work 
under extreme pressure.  The Director of Primary Care thanked Members 

for their support and offer to get the message out in their local areas.  
 

Resolved: 
 

1. That the update report be received and noted. 
 

60. Covid-19 Update 
 
The Chair congratulated the Emily Doorbar, Covid Defence Lead on the 

award of British Empire Medal BEM in the Queen’s New Year’s Honours 
Awards for her exceptional work relating to Covid-19 track and test 

programme in Staffordshire which had been shared with other Local 
Authorities as best practice. The Committee endorsed the Chairman’s 

comments and congratulated her.  The Covid Defence Lead thanked the 
Chair and the team effort to deliver the track and trace programme.    

 
The Covid Defence Lead provided an update which detailed the current 
position in relation to management of Covid-19, case rates, 

demographics, hospitalisations, death rate and vaccination programme. 
 

Committee noted the following comments and responses to questions: 

 Staffordshire overall rate was 977.5 currently lower than the rest of 
the West Midlands, and slightly higher than the national rate. 

 Case rates remain high but had plateaued. There were currently a lot 
of re-infection rates across the County.  

 The legal requirement to self-isolate was to cease on 24 March 2022, 
but there would still be testing and enhanced infection prevention 

controls in the care homes. 
 The Lateral Flow Test LFT supply rates were restored. 

 Infection rates had reduced significantly in age range 5-10 years. 
 Hospitalisations rates had peaked and were now trending downwards 

across Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent beds.   

 Lower death rates were reported. It was clarified that death 
certificates detail Covid as the cause of death where a person had died 

because of Covid and also where they had died of other causes but 
also had Covid. 

Page 13



 

- 6 - 
 

 As previously reported vaccinations continued through the Christmas 
period and residents were still coming forward for vaccinations. It was 

explained that the high level of unvaccinated in younger age groups 
would be because they were not yet eligible for the jab, also that 

people had a 28 day delay after testing positive for Covid before they 
could seek a vaccination. Members welcomed the data set and were 

assured that there were no current concerns, and no-one was being 
left behind. 

 
The Chairman referred to the Annual Report of the Director of Public 
Health 2021 - Staffordshire County Council ‘Covid in Staffordshire - 

impact and opportunities’, he welcomed the report and suggested that 
members read it both in light of the way forward outlined and in relation 

to partnership working and what could be achieved.  He encouraged 
Members to share the report with District and Parish Councillors. 

  
Resolved: 

1. That the update report be received and noted. 
 
61. Integrated Care Hubs 

 

The Associate Director of Communications & Strategic Partnerships 

outlined the report and presentation. She advised that public consultation  

Dec 2018 - March 2019 had informed the MPFT delivery plan to introduce 

Integrated Care Hubs (ICH) across North Staffordshire. The four hubs 

would be developed in Leek Moorlands Hospital, Bradwell Hospital, 

Haywood Hospital and Longton. 

The Integrated Care Hubs (ICH) would be a single point of access to 

services with one referral form to integrate work already happening in the 

community. The ICHs were at this stage integrated models of provision to 

be rolled out prior to the building becoming a reality. The community and 
Members would have full involvement in developing the hubs. 

The following comments and responses to members questions were 
noted: 

 Members welcomed the report and were pleased that health 
colleagues were looking at future demand on services, which would 

potentially be a 17% increase by 2030.  
 The ICHs would have flexible spaces which could be used for a range 

of uses, whether this be clinics or voluntary group usage.  
 Voluntary sector services would be commissioned and paid for by 

MPFT. 
 There was a need for community groups to share information 

protocols and take on board GDPR requirements.  

 The small Public Health team within MPFT would link to ICHs.  The 
demonstration of need for relevant services at local level was key and 

Page 14

https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Care-for-all-ages/Publichealth/Annual-Reports/Annual-Report-of-the-Director-of-Public-Health-2021.aspx?utm_medium=govdelivery&utm_source=email
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Care-for-all-ages/Publichealth/Annual-Reports/Annual-Report-of-the-Director-of-Public-Health-2021.aspx?utm_medium=govdelivery&utm_source=email


 

- 7 - 
 

Public Health colleagues were bringing population health management 
data into design and modelling conversations. 

 Referral to community services time improvement would be made by 
reducing the number of referral forms from GPs and looking at self-

referrals for some services including digital use, to avoid accessing 
through GP in the first instance.  

 Each individual community service currently had an internal referral 
process, the service was looking to cut out the internal referral 

process as the multi-disciplinary teams and clinics would be in one 
place.  

 The need for consistency of care and treatment was highlighted.  

Members noted that there would be differences in spoke and hub 
models, depending on the area in which they were based and 

prevalence for service need. 
 It was suggested by a member that District Councils covering Leek, 

Biddulph and Cheadle needed to set up a work group to understand 
the interaction between the areas in order to future proof the hubs 
and ensure that patients could still get to appointments. In particular 

travel, bus routes, activity data for each of the GP services in the area 
and current usage would be useful feedback to MPFT to understand 

and work through to help shape ICHs. The existing consultation data 
was considered valid; however, it was recognised that things had 

moved on and there was additional demand and backlogs for services.  
 Member questioned what was planned in South Staffordshire. The 

living well model would be across all of Staffordshire, models would be 
rolled out and GP referral forms would be piloted in South of the 
County, but at this stage a building conversion in the South had not 

been discussed.  
 There was additional demand relating to mental health issues and 

more hospitalisation of people who were not identified through 
community services. 

 MPFT was working with public health on the modelling and looking at a 
range of data to consider activities, lessons learned and taking digital 

advances into account in the building design. 
 It was clarified that this consultation would not re-open discussion on 

decisions previously taken to close hospital beds.  

 
Resolved: 

 

1. That the update report be received and noted  

2. That representatives from Staffordshire Moorlands and Newcastle 

under Lyme District Councils meet to consider the interaction 

between the Leek, Biddulph and Cheadle areas in the development 

of the Integrated Care Hubs and feed findings back to MPFT. 

 
 

 

Page 15



 

- 8 - 
 

62. Care Home Update 
 

The Cabinet Member Health and Care introduced a detailed report on the 

care homes situation in Staffordshire and the support provided from 

Government and the County Council. She highlighted the challenges to 

care homes during the pandemic, including the introduction of infection 

control measures; the impact on residents and carers; staff absence, 

recruitment and retention rates and a drop of occupancy rates bringing 

financial challenge. She indicated that care homes had been supported by 

the Council throughout this period, in particular with managing outbreak 
control measures.  

The Cabinet Member advised that new pressures had impacted on care 

homes capacity to accept new referrals, this impacted on the wider Health 

and Care system in terms of delayed discharge from hospital and a lack of 

choice of homes available for residents. There was some recent recovery 

of occupancy numbers and additional Government funding to address 

pressures and support care homes but where no progress or improvement 

was made, action would have to be taken. There was ambition to improve 

the standard of care by assisting care homes to use more technology and 

a range of activities and initiatives. The Director of Health and Care 

indicated that the commissioning initiatives outlined in the report would 
help to ensure the sustainability of care homes into the future. 

The Cabinet Member highlighted that access and affordability were 

important to individuals’ family and carers and that the Council would 

continue to pursue value for money and stability for home care market by 

increasing the number of block booked beds and continuing to use 

dynamic purchasing system. A report to Cabinet in Summer 2022 would 

consider the review of Council owned nursing care homes capacity.   

The Director of Health and Care gave thanks to all care homes and their 

staff for the extraordinary efforts they had made to look after some of the 

most vulnerable residents over the course of the pandemic. The Chairman 

and Committee echoed these comments.  

The following comments and responses to members questions were 
noted: 

 Approximately 20% of Staffordshire County Councils funded 
placements were in care homes rated inadequate or required 
improvement.  

 Locally and nationally, more was needed to understand the costs 
coming through the reforms in the Social Care Act. The three main 

element of reforms in the Social Care Act: 

a. A cap that the individual pays towards cost of care in their lifetime 

(£86,000).    

Page 16



 

- 9 - 
 

b. A rise in capital assets individual allowed to have before starting to 
pay for their care from £23,350 to £100,000. 

c. A fair cost of care principal which would effectively equalise the 
amount that self-funders and Local Authorities pay for care.  

In relation to (a) the cap: It was understood that self-funders paid 
more for care but there was no information about how much more. 

Self-funders would be given the right for the Local Authority to 
purchase their care, over time that would have the effect of equalising 

the care costs, which would create financial pressure for the Local 
Authority. 
In relation to (b) & (c): the care cap and capital thresholds would 

create an increase in assessment needs.  This would require new 
social workers and administration of new funding forms, this would 

increase the cost of assessments for the Local Authority.  

 Purchase of 200 block booked beds aimed to give stability of price and 

quality for self-funders and the Council, greater stability to the 
market, and provide value for money.   

 Members highlighted that residents and staff mental wellbeing had 

been impacted through the pandemic, some restrictions were now 
reducing, and members hoped restrictions would decrease more.  

 The 450-place decrease in occupancy rates for 2020-21 during the 
pandemic was for a variety of reasons, including death rates, that care 

homes were less desirable place to be, and that people chose to stay 
in their community. Occupancy level had increased by 250 places, but 

were still 200 places down from pre-covid levels. Demand for Adult 
Social Care was currently quite high, but demand was unsettled, there 
would be a clearer picture of demand and capacity by the Autumn 

2022. 
 Out of County placements were necessary where specialist care not 

available in Staffordshire was required, however the most common 
reason for out of County placements was people’s choice to move 

closer to their family. 
 Partners were working closer together and had joint teams with NHS 

to monitor and support quality improvement and quality assurance in 
care homes across the County.  There may be opportunity for 
deepening integrated care arrangements to consider joint purchasing 

arrangements and to think about commissioning and contracting for 
placements and to make best use of purchasing power across the 

County Council and the NHS. 

 Assurance was provided that access to care home placements was 

timely and that there were three standards for finding home care 
placements:  highest priority referral (1 day), urgent referral (7 days) 
and routine cases referral (28 days). Collectively 85% of placements 

were achieved in timescales for December. In January due to Covid 
outbreaks 61% were placed within timescales. Care homes that were 

closed for admissions peaked at 75 a few weeks ago and were now 

Page 17



 

- 10 - 
 

down to 50.  Members were assured that the data demonstrated the 
right direction of travel. 

 
Resolved: 

 
1. That the update report be noted and a further update be requested 

to a future meeting.  
 

 
63. District and Borough Health Scrutiny Update 
 

District and Borough representatives presented update reports on matters 
being considered at District and Borough meetings.  

Resolved:  

1. That the District and Borough Updates be noted. 

 
64. Work Programme 2021-22 
 

The Chairman introduced the work programme.  Members considered 
matters planned and associated scrutiny work taking place in the District 

and Boroughs.  
 

Resolved: 
 

1. That Committee note the work programme update  
2. That Committee note the change of date of the 19 April 2022 

meeting which has been re-scheduled to Monday 11 April 2022 at 

10.00am. 
3. That officers circulate the Stafford Borough Council Covenant of 

Mental Health which was to be launched on 4 February 2022 to 
District and Borough Councils. To request that members share the 

Covenant with Cabinet Members to consider signing up to develop a 
Countywide Covenant for Mental Health.  

4. That officers circulate the link to the Health and Well Being Board 
Priorities consultation to all District and Borough Councils to 
consider HWB priorities in their areas. 

5. That the relevant members from Borough and District Councils meet 
to consider planning a response to the consultation for the 

Integrated Care Hubs in North Staffordshire. 
6. That officers circulate the recent work carried out by Staffordshire 

Moorlands Council relating to SEND work in schools with the 
Committee for information.  

 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 18



 
SMDC Health Overview & Scrutiny Panel  

Work Programme 2021/22 

 

 
Date 

 
Items for Agenda 

 

23 June 2021   
 North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust Annual Update  
 Update on the temporary closure of Leek Minor Injuries Unit.  
 Leek Integrated Care Hub  

15 September 

2021 

  

 Aftercare following discharge from hospital   
 MPFT Annual Update   
 WMAS – (Review of Community Ambulance Stations & rural provision of the 

Ambulance Service) 
 

15 December 
2021 

Cancelled  

 Leek Integrated Care Hub (services and community representation on Boards)  
   

9 Feb 2022   

 Leek Integrated Care Hub (services and community representation on Boards)  

 Kniveden and John Hall Gardens  

   

9 March 2022   
 Sustainability/Climate Change and the NHS - Chris Bird - Director of 

Partnerships, Strategy & Digital, North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS 
Trust. 

 

TBC  Status Update 

 Regular progress updates on the Leek Integrated Care Hub  

 Regular updates on the temporary closure of Leek MIU MPFT confirmed there 

isn’t anything further to 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8



update since their 
attendance at the meeting 
in September 2021  

 SMDC Climate Change Strategy -  impacts on health eg. fuel poverty and 
excessive winter deaths 

Chris Bird attending on 9 
March 2022 

 Mental health first aid training for staff and councillors Part of the new 
Organisational Strategy, 

once approved and 
consider as part of the 

Members’ Development 
Programme. 

 Annual Updates CCG, MPFT, Royal Stoke, WMAS , Combined Health Care & 
Healthwatch 

 

 Collaborative Working/Primary Care Networks and Self-Care Model - MPFT  

 Details of the Social Care Plan given the recent increase to National Insurance 
contributions and the quality of care in the Moorlands/Midlands 

Has not been 
implemented as yet. 
Social Care Budget is 

likely to be the 
responsibility of the 

County Council’s 
Corporate O&S 
Committee. 

 Rural Ambulance Service Escalated to SCC Health 

& Care O&S Committee 

 Access to GP Appointments Responsibility of the SCC 
Health & Care O&S 

Committee and is being 
scutinised at this level. 

 Loneliness  

 Dementia Care  
 

P
age 20



Developing a Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care 
System (ICS) Green Plan
March 2022

NHS approach to climate change

Chris Bird
Director of Partnerships, Strategy and Digital – North Staffordshire Combined 
Healthcare NHS Trust
Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent ICS Senior Responsible Officer 
for Sustainability

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 9



National Policy Environment
NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI) vision: to deliver 
the world’s first net zero health service and respond to climate 
change, improving health now and for future generations.

• Climate change poses a major threat to our health and planet - the 
environment is changing, change is accelerating, and this has 
direct and immediate consequences for our patients, the public 
and the NHS.

• UK government has made a commitment to reach net zero carbon 
by 2050 – health and care system contributes c4-5% of the 
country’s carbon footprint and therefore has a major role to play.

• The report Delivering a Net Zero Health Service sets a clear 
ambition and target for the NHS. 

• Two clear and feasible targets are outlined: 
• The NHS Carbon Footprint: for the emissions we control 

directly, net zero by 2040
• The NHS Carbon Footprint Plus: for the emissions we can 

influence, net zero by 2045.

P
age 22

https://www.england.nhs.uk/greenernhs/publication/delivering-a-net-zero-national-health-service/


The Carbon footprint of the NHS

P
age 23



Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent 
(SSoT) Sustainability Group 

• Nature and scale of the Greener NHS agenda is too broad and 
deep to be coordinated through a single officer and will require 
senior, expert input from a broad range of disciplines and 
functions.

• Providing system oversight for the achievement of the carbon 
reduction targets against both the NHS Carbon Footprint and 
the NHS Carbon Footprint Plus, as specified in ‘Delivering a Net 
Zero NHS’, as well as monitoring progress against expected
trajectories.

• Coordinate production of NHS organisational 3 Year Green 
Plans (2022/23 – 2024/25) and the subsequent translation of 
those Green Plans into an ICS Green Plan – this includes:

o Workforce and leadership
o Sustainable models of care
o Digital transformation
o Travel and transport
o Estates and facilities
o Medicines
o Supply chain and procurement
o Food and nutrition
o Adaptation (EPRR).

UHNM

NSCHT

CCGs

MPFT

UHDB

Staffordshire 
County 
Council

Stoke-on-
Trent City 
Council

Other 
partners

Staffordshire
Sustainability

Board

Health & Care
Senate

VCSE

Universities

Suppliers

NHSEI

Primary
Care

PFI

P
age 24



Areas of focus
• Awareness raising and training via carbon literacy
• Promotion of active travel options
• ULEV/ZEV vehicles – fleet and lease
• Reducing Desflurane usage (an anaesthetic gas) 
• Reducing pressure metered dose inhalers and inhaler recycling
• Reducing medicines waste
• Energy efficiency / renewable energy via energy audits
• Net Zero Supplier roadmap  - procurement frameworks and work 

with suppliers of goods and services 
• NHS Plastics Pledge / PPE
• Sustainable models of care (including digital transformation) 
• Adopt ‘Anchor Institution’ type approach – promote connection to 

local communities.

P
age 25



Jan
2022 Apr

2022

ICS Green Plan 
final version

24 Mar
2022

Jan – Mar 
2022

SSoT Greener NHS 
Group coordinates 
development of ICS 

Green Plan

ICS Executive 
Forum reviews 
ICS Green Plan

NHS Trusts 
publish Green 

Plans

MLCSU providing capacity 
and capability based on 
engagement with all key 

partners

Delegated 
approval to the 

ICS CEO for final 
version

31 Mar
2022

ICS Green Plan 
launch event

Green Plan Timeline
Key milestones in development of the ICS Green Plan

P
age 26



Case Study – keep well, keep warm
• Designed to prevent hospital readmissions of 

vulnerable patients whose health conditions could be 
made worse through living in cold/damp homes

• Partnership of NHS / VCSE / Industry / Community
• Installation of solar panels across UHNM estate to 

provide UHNM with lower cost and resilient supply of 
energy

• Reduces UHNM demand on National Grid and 
generates a return to private industry together with a 
surplus which accumulates into a community fund

• The community fund resources ‘Beat the Cold’ to 
help alleviate fuel poverty in Staffordshire

• Referrals to ‘Beat the Cold’ come, in part, from 
UHNM clinicians whose patients are presenting with 
health conditions linked to their home environments.

Royal Stoke University Hospital rooftops

P
age 27



QuestionsP
age 28


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	6 Minutes of the Last Meeting of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee.
	8 Work Programme.
	9 NHS Approach to Climate Change - Chris Bird, Director of Partnerships, Strategy & Digital, North Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust. (Presentation)
	��Developing a Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Integrated Care System (ICS) Green Plan€��March 2022
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Green Plan Timeline
	Case Study – keep well, keep warm
	Questions


